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The Byron Greenough (H. H. Hay) Block is a four story triangular
brick building situated at the intersection of Free and Middle Streets
near the center of the Portland peninsula. The original exterior has been
altered by the addition of the fourth story and various up datings of the
first story store fronts, but it retains most of its Greek Revival detail-
ing and hence its massive, solid presence.

The building has two sections, with a slight horizontal offset to
accommodate the rise in the ground level to the west. The major facade,
facing north on Middle Street, is about 90 feet long. There are five bays,
each determined by the vertical continuity of the windows on each story,
to the section nearest the street intersection; six bays to the western sec-
tion.

Granite columns support a wide lintel above the first story. Orig-
inally, large windows and entrances alternated between the columns and
signs for H.H. Hay and Sons covered the limtel. 1In 1889, 38 feet of the
store front was remodeled with new windows. Today the first story has
modern store fronts.

The original window openings with granite sills and lintels remain
on the second and third floors. The projecting brick stringcourses of the
original cornice remain except on the most westerly three bays, but the
wooden balustrade was removed for the addition of the fourth story in 1919,
designed by John Calvin Stevens. The brick and detailing of this story match
the original brick and trim; it is difficult to tell s '
it has been added.

The cornice has bricks set in relief as dentils, supporting a wide
overhanging wooden malding. The roof is flat, with a penthouse on the
western section.

The facade facing southeast toward Pree Street, about 100 feet long,
is largely intact. There are four bays to the section nearest the inter-
section, and six bays to the western section. The windows are detailed as
on the Middle Street facade. The cornice continues around the building.
The first story is méstly solild brick with some windows blocked up and
receiving doors inserted.

Facing the intersection of Free and Middly Streets is a narrow one
bay facade. The detail of the Middle Street facade originally carried
around to this facade. 1In 1889, a plate glass bay window was inserted.
The third and fourth stories show the original slight bow to the brick at
the middle of this facade.

The last three bays of the western section now form a separate building
which does not connect through the party wall to the rest of the original
block. This building has been sandblasted recently, and, with the offset

of its fourth story windows and the lack of stringcourses between the third
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and fourth stories, does not look as if it were part of the original
block. However, a sketch on an H. H. Hay bill of 1868 shows that it was.

The granite for the trim on the Byron Greenough Block came from
Kennebunkport. It is in good condition today. The brick is in good
condition also. The walls were probably painted originally. Today, mus-
tard yellow paint is peeling from them,
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Byron Greenough (H. H. Hay) Block occupies a crucial location
in downtown Portland - the triangular land at the intersection of two
major streets. It is a stately architectural solution for a building
on such a difficult site. Its unusual shape and long history as the home
of the H. H. Hay Drug Company give identity to that part of Portland's ..
downtown today, as they have in the past.

One of the older Greek ' Revival commercial buildings in Portland,
the Byron Greenough Block survived the Great Fire of 1866. The simply arti-
culated Greek Revival features of the building -~ the granite columms,
lintels and sills, the brick stringcourses, the balance of the vertical
bays created by the windows with the horizontal continuity of the flat brick
walls give the building a massive dignityg.

The Byron Greenough Block acts as a foil to the more elaborate
Victorian period commercial buildings opposite it on Frée Street,
and will be able to hold its own against whatever new construction finally
faces it on Middle Street. The block is an appropriaté anchor fér the
rhythmic building facades along Middle Street, which, with the recent Maine
Way wurban renewal improvements, is a focal point of downtown Portland.

The Byron Greenough Block is named for the man who built it in 1848,
Byron Greenough. He made and sold hats and furs, using the building as
his place of business until around 1856. He was active in the local Baptist
church and apparently bequeathed the block to the church in 1871 - 1872,
after which it yielded a substantial annual income. The Maine Baptist Mis-
sionary Convention :sdld the building in 1924.

Henry Homer Hay (1820 - 1895) moved his wholesale and retail drug,
paint and dyestuff business to this block in 1856, renting the space. His
sons joined him in the business and it became H.H. Hay and Son, continuing
in the same location. In 1945 the block was sold to the company, which
owned it until 1964. H.H. Hay was a member of the New Jerusalem church, the
Natural History Society and the Board of Trade. He was respected by his
tontemporaries as an honest, hard working and talented business man. The
long tenancy of his company have given the block the name it is most commonly
known by; his business made it a landmark in a personal sense.
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